Annual Report Working in
2018-19 Partnership

About us
Soho Housing develops and manages mixed tenure residential properties in
Central London alongside a West End commercial portfolio.

Vision
“Providing quality homes that people are proud
to live in, in environments they want to be in
and enjoy”
Mission and Values
Mission

Local Social Housing
Service Excellence
Working Together
Sustainable Growth

Enterprise
Investing in development
Active asset management
Driving value for money
Maximising opportunities

Inclusion
Bringing people together
Celebrating diversity
Supporting communities
Wellbeing and equality

Guardianship
Stewards of our Mission
Valuing our heritage
Passionate and responsible
Legacy for future generations
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2018-19 Highlights

813

14

47

Total no. of
homes

New homes

Homes let
in year

£160m

£9.1m

£1.8m

£1.88m

Total
property
value

Turnover

Operating
surplus

Commercial
income
subsidising homes

20%

149%

38%

Operating
margin

£37.9m
Commercial
portfolio capital
value

4

Interest

35

Gearing

Commercial
units

22

2.1%

£37.5k

(FTEs)

arrears

cover

Employees
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Housing rent

Invested
in team
development

Chair & CEO’s Introduction
Soho Housing is a very special organization. Formed in
1974 and dedicated to providing genuinely affordable
homes in one of the most expensive locations in
the world, our sense of purpose as an independent
boutique scale social landlord supporting our capital
city, is stronger than ever. In everything we do, we
are driven by our vision to create quality homes that
people are proud to live in, in environments they want
to be in and enjoy. This is a long term ambition which
goes beyond our current and future homes. It seeks
to improve local lives and the communities around us.
Achieving this ambition, means considering all
the perspectives for the present and the future. It
means careful business planning based on a detailed
understanding of our stock and our markets, to
ensure we invest wisely. It also means working to
shared goals in partnership with our residents, our
commercial customers, community partners, supply
chain and our local authorities for the best outcomes.

Shared goals in partnership
Against a challenging backdrop of social rents reduced
by a further 1%, whilst the cost of maintaining stock
in Central London continues to increase, difficulties in
the retail market which makes up the majority of our
commercial portfolio, our operating surplus at the end
of the year stood at £1.8m, meeting target operating
margin of 20%.
Our performance was supported by a dedicated
focus on income gathering, to be generating the
much needed funds to enable our delivery and this
will continue to be a focus next year. Dedicated
resources, including investment in specialist IT, has
driven rent collection up and rent arrears down to
a very creditable 2.1% for housing rents - down
from 3.9% in the previous year. Equally crucial in
times of economic uncertainty and the pressures of
Universal Credit, is knowledge and understanding of
the circumstances of our customers – residential and
commercial - so that we can bring greater value to
their and our own needs.

New homes
In 2018-19 we created 14 new homes at 59
Greek Street and 10 Denmark Street - of which
13 are offered at affordable rents. This brings our
residential portfolio total to 813. Both developments
involved working in close partnership with our two
local authorities. We worked in conjunction with
Westminster to achieve planning to convert 59 Greek
Street from its former hostel status into ten new
homes (nine of which are affordable) and to draw up
a nominations agreement which takes into account
Soho Housing’s local lettings policy. On our scheme
at 10 Denmark Street we worked in partnership
with Camden Council, who provided some affordable
homes grant funding to help us keep the intermediate
rents accessible to local working people.
Our commercial approach to achieve our social goals
is increasingly vital and so we place increasing focus
on enterprise, innovation, value for money initiatives
and getting the best out of our commercial portfolio.
With 35 units, the commercial capital value increased
during the year from £37.3m to £37.9m and our
commercial income in the year of £1.88m (up from
£1.66m the previous year) played a key role in
maintaining our assets and delivering our services.
The development of new homes in the heart of the
city has been a major focus and achievement for Soho
Housing over the past few years. Now that we have
secured these additional homes and have a long-term
investment strategy in place we are moving our focus
over the next couple of years firmly onto our existing
stock with a prioritised programme of works both
inside residents’ homes and across the communal
parts of our buildings. As always, ensuring that our
properties are safe is our top priority.
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Modern progressive business

Looking forward

As a forward-looking business, we know we must keep
evolving. Over the past four years we have followed a
corporate strategy framed by the strategic objectives
we adopted in 2015. The strategy guides our process
of evolution as a changing organisation through to
2020, building a modern progressive business focused
on delivering a vital social purpose. It is clear that
the future will look very different to the past as ways
of working, evolving standards, digital advancement
and social expectations increasingly impact upon
housing management and the commercial real estate
sector. We recognise the challenges we face along
the way in evolving in order to ready the organisation
for those changes and although we are committed to
modernisation in the way we deliver our customer and
community led service, we remain firmly committed
to the core purpose contained in our Mission. In the
following section of this report (“Round-up of the
Year’s Activities”) we set out how we have performed
in each area.

Looking forward, we will steadily build on the
foundations for change laid this year to be developing
our corporate strategy with a keen focus on customer
service and smart asset management and asset
data, listening to our residents in designing our offer,
professionalising our services, further investing in
their safety and improving the quality of their homes.
We value the time, commitment and cooperation of
stakeholders in our localities as well as the dedication
of our board members and shareholders. Most of all
we would like to thank all our residents for giving
us their valuable feedback and encourage them to
continue to engage with our team to make sure we
are offering the best services.

One team with a common
sense of purpose
In order to achieve our ambitions, we must engage
the people with the best available skills at any given
time, ensuring we have the right structure in place
to support the ongoing evolution of our organisation.
We manage both social and commercial assets
and we seek out the skills which combine the best
practices of the housing sector with the enterprise of
the commercial world, working together as one team
with a common sense of purpose to generate the best
outcomes for our residents, our communities and the
long term interests of Soho Housing. We continue to
invest in our team by providing the opportunity to
develop the know-how and specialist skills to meet the
increasing standards of our sectors. This encompasses
a wide range of initiatives from team-wide training to
individual seminars, coaching and longer programmes
leading to qualifications. Personal development is
building the skills and confidence in our people to
deliver to our aspirations.
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Lesley Roberts
Chair of the Board

Vivienne King
Chief Executive

Round-Up of the Year’s
Activities
Our commitment to customer service was
demonstrated in the year through a restructured
residential management team with clear roles and
responsibilities to serve our evolving organisation.
We have a new dedicated customer services team
providing a consistent service for initial contacts
and complaints, improving our data management by
holding records centrally. In the year a new modern
telephony system and out of hours service were
brought in to improve the customer experience.
Launch of a new resident engagement strategy,
providing increased face to face interaction with our
residents and a greater role for our residents to play
in delivery of our services.
In order to have a clear understanding of the condition
of our stock, we conducted surveys across the
portfolio, with health and safety being a top focus. We
achieved 100% Decent Homes compliance across the
portfolio in 2018/19. We also carried out programmed
cyclical decorations in selected properties, benefitting
80 residents.
During the year we welcomed several new people to
the team, including Tim Atkins to complete our newly
created customer services team, Zahra Shoorvazi
increasing our housing know-how as a Property
Manager, Ayesha Smith supporting our health and
safety requirements and Annelle Simpson providing
support to the business to sustain performance whilst
other team members were engaged in projects. We
launched a culture programme in the year based on
our core values and behaviours and invested £37.5k in
training, coaching and development of the team.

We added a new corporate objective in the year to
ensure we are recognised for sustaining the diversity
of central London by providing affordable homes
in unaffordable places and excellent service. Key
activities contributing towards this in the year included
a stakeholder engagement programme, the launch
of a new resident engagement strategy and active
support and engagement in local community events.
During the year we mitigated the 1% rent cut by
controlling costs and maximising efficiencies (see
Value for Money on p22 for more details). We continue
to regularly monitor all areas of performance in the
business with a comprehensive series of KPIs. During
the year we identified a rent miscalculation which we
promptly reported to the Regulator of Social Housing.
We put corrective steps in place to ensure this does
not happen again and ensured we have corrected our
error for each of the affected residents. The Regulator
confirmed they were satisfied with our response and
would not take further action.
We value and respect the confidentiality of the data
we hold on our residents and others. Soho Housing
takes data protection very seriously and significant
work has been done to meet the requirements of
the General Data Protection Regulation and the
Data Protection Act 2018. We are confident that the
association has robust processes in place and are
following a comprehensive action plan to ensure
that the business is fully compliant and continues to
address the changing landscape.

We completed 14 new homes at 59 Greek Street and
10 Denmark Street, of which 13 are affordable and
grew our commercial portfolio income by £200k. We
have a comprehensive plan in place for managing
and positioning the portfolio. Our “Hidden Homes”
programme is under way to identify opportunities to
develop within our existing stock.
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Community & Environment
Soho Housing celebrates its role in the local
communities at the heart of one of the most diverse
cities in the world. We believe it is important to
support local residents, groups, charities and
businesses, enabling them to thrive in vibrant,
exciting surroundings.
In June 2018 we supported the Soho Food Feast.
Held in St Anne’s Gardens across an entire weekend,
this is an opportunity each year for people to
celebrate a wonderful range of quality food and drink
provided by local businesses, with proceeds going to
Soho Parish School.
We hosted our regular stall at the 44th Soho Village
Fête in July 2018 which was a very successful
event. We also helped to fund the 9th Phoenix
Garden Agricultural Show and St Giles Fayre.
Both events provide an opportunity for us to meet
our residents and other local people in colourful,
enjoyable surroundings, sharing information about
who we are and what we are doing. Proceeds raised
from our lucky dip and “hook a duck” activities went
towards funding the local school, Soho Parish, some
of whose pupils live in Soho Housing homes.
We continue to offer financial support to local
charitable organisations: West End Community
Trust and The House of St Barnabas. West End
Community Trust offers a programme of events for
the community, with focus on more isolated and
elderly residents. The House of St Barnabas is a
private members’ club, which funds an employment
academy in the same building which offers support
providing work experience in their business alongside
accredited qualifications, real job opportunities and
mentoring.
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Soho Neighbourhood Forum
We actively support and promote this important local
organisation with our Chief Executive, Board members
and shareholders deeply involved, one of whom, Matthew
Bennett, chairs the Forum. The Soho Neighbourhood
Forum is working in consultation with local residents,
groups and businesses to create a Plan for Soho to find
solutions to shared interests and concerns.
Diversity & Equality
As an organisation based at the centre of one of the
most diverse cities in the world, we celebrate the vast
array of communities who live and work here and treat
everyone equally and fairly.
We participate in events organised by Freehold,
a leading networking forum for LGBT real estate
professionals working within the real estate sector.
We are members of Real Estate Balance, an
association run by a group of female and male leaders
from different organisations and disciplines engaged in
real estate who are focussed on addressing the gender
imbalance in our sector.
Local Business Partners
We aim to support local business where possible and
were delighted to be approached by Quod, local specialist
planning and development consultants, who presented
Christmas hampers to all residents of our sheltered
block.
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Customer Service & Housing
Customer Services Team
Customer service lies at the heart of everything
we do. Our Customer Services team is led by our
Customer Services Manager, who manages a team
of two Customer Services Advisors who are the first
point of contact for our customers. We have created
a centralised call system to improve efficiency.

Resident Engagement Strategy
We value the opinion of our residents on how we
deliver our services and always look to better
understand their needs. Our residents’ experience our
services every day and their feedback has led us to
develop our Resident Engagement Strategy, launched
mid 2018.

During the year we introduced a telephony system
which added new features which include tools to
measure and report on our performance in answering
calls and duration of calls, the addition of comfort
messages and the facility to record calls for training
purposes.

The strategy sets out the different ways residents
are able to engage with us. A key aim is to make
sure residents have a meaningful say in how their
homes are managed by helping shape Soho Housing’s
service delivery. It recognises the diverse needs and
commitments of our residents and aims to reflect
those by offering a far wider range of options for
engaging with us from face to face meetings (held in
different locations and at different times of day) to
conducting online surveys and seeking more feedback.

Benchmarking & Customer Satisfaction
We have joined HouseMark so that we can compare
our performance data with similar organisations and
learn new examples of best practice.
Every two years we carry out a resident satisfaction
survey. An external company contacts all of our
residents by phone or with a form to give feedback
on the services we offer. The last survey was
conducted at the end of 2018, with 170 out of 800
households responding. Unfortunately, levels of
satisfaction were lower than the previous survey
held two years earlier with overall satisfaction falling.
Best performing areas were satisfaction with local
area and value for money of rent. Areas we will
focus on as a result of the results include repairs and
maintenance, keeping residents informed and taking
views into account.
Repairs were highlighted as a key priority for
residents and continue to be a major area of focus
for Soho Housing. Since the survey took place we
have listened to feedback on our out of hours service
and conducted a tendering exercise of several
alternative candidates, following which we selected
a new supplier called Orbis, who started working for
us in March 2019. Feedback to date records callers
appreciating the comfort messages which give their
position in the queue and say they have generally
been getting through swiftly.
We value customer feedback and take these
responses very seriously. We will continue to listen to
residents, include their feedback and take the actions
needed to drive up satisfaction.
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By the year end activities were under way with
more site visits made by Property Managers, and
the formation of the new Residents’ Collaborative
Assessment Panel (or ReCAP for short), which
represents the views of the total resident body from
Soho Housing’s wider residential portfolio, and works
in collaboration with Soho Housing’s employees.
To date, ReCAP has undergone initial training by
resident engagement sector leaders TPAS. ReCAP’s
focus for 2019-20 will be to assist Soho Housing
to identify and deliver key service improvements
including value for money through retendering of
our main contracts such as responsive repairs and
communal cleaning.

2.1%
Housing rent
arrears
Housing Team
Led by our Housing Portfolio Manager our Housing Team
deals with rents, service charges, lettings and tenancy
issues. The team is made up two Property Managers
who spend a large part of their time at the properties
they manage to meet with residents and conduct site
inspections. Our Income & Lettings Manager focuses on
rent collection and letting empty homes and our Older
Persons Coordinator provides support at our sheltered
block.

Rent Arrears and Collection
Despite economic uncertainties, we have succeeded
in keeping arrears at a low level. At the end of March
2019, our rent arrears figure stood at 2.1%, well
within our target of 2.6% and a significant reduction
on the previous year’s figure of 3.9%.

Mutual Exchange
We are members of both Homeswapper and
HouseExchange to increase the options available to our
residents seeking to swap homes. Both services are
free of charge for our residents to use.

New Lettings
We let 47 new homes in the year (compared with 29
in the previous year) - 40 in Westminster and 7 in
Camden. Principle reasons for tenants needing homes
included living closer to work, overcrowding and
homelessness.

Allocations
We offer homes at a range of rents (social,
discounted, affordable, intermediate and full market)
and tenures. The majority of our homes are let to
nominees from the Choice Based Lettings schemes
run by local authorities in Camden and Westminster.

Lettings by Property Size 2018-19
Camden

Westminster

Total

Studio

0

3

3

1-bed

6

14

20

2-bed

1

21

22

3-bed

0

2

2

TOTAL

7

40

47

Lettings by Source

Lettings by Tenure

Council nominee

Social

Internal transfer

Intermediate

Market rent

Market

Discounted Lettings Scheme

Discounted
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Looking after our Homes
Asset Management Team
Our Asset Management Team takes responsibility for
managing all the repairs and maintenance across the
Soho Housing portfolio, as well as dealing with safety,
compliance, planned works, including our cyclical
decorations programme, together with managing work
on our void properties to ensure that they are re-let
as quickly as possible. We have a very experienced
team of property professionals, covering all the
skills required to meet the demands of maintaining
all Soho Housing’s properties, dealing with internal
works to residents’ homes plus the external fabric
of the buildings. As well as surveying and building
management skills, we place enormous emphasis on
managing all matters relating to health and safety, to
ensure the health and welfare of all our residents and
others is looked after.

Decent Homes Standard
Having carried out a comprehensive Stock Condition
Survey programme two years ago, surveying the
key internal component parts of all of our housing
stock, this has enabled us to form a long term plan in
managing and maintaining our residents’ homes. To
support this further, we are about to embark on an
additional survey programme covering the external
elements of our buildings. These condition surveys
will supplement our previous survey work and provide
us with a more complete picture in being able to plan
our long term maintenance programme of works.
This information will help us manage and maintain
our stock of properties for current and future
generations of residents in Soho and surrounding
areas. This also ensures that properties in our
portfolio meet the expected standard with 100% of
our homes satisfying Decent Homes Standard at the
year end.

Day to Day Repairs
Our Customer Services and Asset Management teams
work in close partnership with our contractors to
deliver our repairs and maintenance service and we
continue to seek out ways to improve our standards,
in part with the additional help of new technology,
but at the same time endeavoring to maintain and
enhance service and quality levels to our residents.
Health and Safety
It is paramount that we ensure residents are safe in
their homes. We have a number of comprehensive
programmes of work that we undertake year on
year, covering fire safety, gas servicing and repairs,
electrical testing, asbestos surveys and water quality.
We strive to meet increasingly exacting standards to
ensure that residents are provided with assurances on
required standards of health and safety.

Local Security Issues
In the boroughs of Westminster and Camden we
continue to work in close partnership with both
authorities as well as local agencies and the police, to
address issues of security, in particular related to drug
addict ASB, a matter which is of great concern to us
and our residents.

Cyclical Decorations Programme
During the year we carried out cyclical decoration
works across a number of our properties. This
programme of work ensures that all external parts
of buildings as well as common parts are maintained
and improved to achieve our long term goals of
continuing to provide affordable housing in our
operating areas.
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Growth & Commercial
Activity
Soho Limited is our wholly owned commercial
subsidiary. It is run by a team with extensive
experience of commercial property whose
responsibilities are to ensure our investment and
development management delivers the financial returns
needed to enable us to fulfil our ambitions for our social
business with close regard to impact on our residents.
New Developments
The following development schemes were completed
during the year:
59 Greek Street, W1
Work was completed on this property in early 2018.
Nine homes have been let at intermediate rents and one
at market rent. While the affordable homes are let to
nominees from Westminster Council, we have secured
agreement that they will also meet our own local lettings
criteria. The basement and ground floors are being let as a
restaurant space.
10 Denmark Street, WC2
This development of four new homes was the second
phase of a section 106 arrangement with Consolidated
Ltd (the first phase being 71 Endell Street). Camden
Council have provided affordable homes grant funding
to help us keep the intermediate rents accessible to
local working people.

59 Greek Street, W1

Future Schemes
With an increasing demand for new homes, we continue
to look for future developments. Meanwhile we have
developed our “Hidden Homes” programme which assess
opportunities across our own portfolio to create new
homes, such as infill opportunities on land adjacent to
existing homes or redevelopment of other non residential
elements.

Pop-up at 59 Greek Street, W1
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Commercial Portfolio
Soho Housing owns and operates a commercial property
portfolio, which cross subsidises and enables us to grow
our stock of affordable housing. This comprises a mix of
35 retail, restaurant and office spaces, predominately
located in the heart of Soho.

64-68 Charing Cross Road – Refurbishment
We refurbished 64-68 Charing Cross Road following
the departure of the former tenant. Extensive
reconfiguration works provide over 2,000 square
feet of useable retail space.

The portfolio is managed by Soho Limited, who are
responsible for the proactive asset management of
the investments, ensuring the smooth running of
the portfolio and for assessing the viability of future
investments and developments. Income derived from
the commercial portfolio helps subsidise our social and
discounted rents and funds future acquisitions and
developments.

59 Greek Street
The development delivers over 2,000 square feet of
restaurant space, arranged over ground floor and
basement. The space was soft launched by Nash
Bond, a specialist letting agency, in February 2018,
attracting a high volume of interest.

We take great care in selecting commercial tenants
and assess them on the merits of sustainable business
models, use class, compatibility with the residential
upper parts and whether they will add to community
within the local area.

80 Charing Cross Road
During the year we let the shop at 80 Charing Cross
Road to new tenants, M1 Fine Arts, a gallery selling
contemporary paintings, prints and sculpture.

A growing practice has been the increased short term
letting of available spaces to “pop-ups” at 59 Greek
Street and at 64-68 Charing Cross Road, not only
increasing revenue but also supporting smaller local
businesses.

M1 Fine Arts, 80 Charing Cross Rd, WC2
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Governance
Our Board
Soho Housing’s board oversee at a strategic level the
management of homes, provision of customer service,
and development of new homes in central London which
are genuinely affordable.
Soho Housing’s non-executive members offer their time,
energy and expertise, driving the organisation forward at
a strategic level.
Board members conduct an annual audit to evaluate
the board’s effectiveness and ensure it has the skills
that match the needs of the organisation. We use this
information when recruiting new members. This year
the board conducted a more comprehensive review in
consultation with the Housing Quality Network to ensure
it is in line with best practices in the sector.
Board members are appointed for a term of three years
with the potential for a further extension of three years,
followed by three more terms of one year each, making
a maximum of nine years in total. Board members
attend at least four board meetings each year and are
often members of other committees, regularly attend
other events and are occasionally called upon to attend
complaints hearing panels.
In the past year Matt Cooper and Rod Ainsworth stood
down. Matt Cooper was our Treasurer for the last four
years and Rod Ainsworth was a board member for nearly
6 years as well as being Vice Chair of the Board. Both of
them played a key role in our Audit & Risk Committee.
We thank them for their time, passion and dedication to
Soho Housing.
We have adopted the National Housing Federation 2015
code of excellence for governance and its code of conduct
and are fully compliant.

Board Members
as at 31st March 2019

Time
served

Lesley Roberts – Chair of the Board
Partner & Executive Director
Allsop LLP

6.5 yrs

Mark Ewing
Finance Director & Authority Secretary,
Covent Garden Market Authority

1.5 yrs

Rosemary Farrar
Housing Finance Consultant

1.5 yrs

Mark Gilkes
Tube Train Driver &
ASLEF Health & Safety representative

3.5 yrs

Wendy Hardcastle
Founder Member &
a tenant of the Association

4.5 yrs

Dickon Robinson
Chairman, Living Architecture &
Founder Member

4.5 yrs

Nick Stonley
Managing Director,
Millwood Designer Homes

2.5 yrs

Jeremy Titchen
Director,
Rockhopper Real Estate

2.5 yrs

Kerry Tromanhauser Vice Chair of the Board
Director of Governance,
Hyde Housing

1.5 yrs

Vivienne King
Ex officio member
Chief Executive, Soho Housing

3 yrs

Number of Board and Sub
Committee Meetings held
in 2018-19
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Board

8

Audit & Risk Committee

5

People & Governance Committee

4

Soho Ltd Board

4

Shareholder Meetings
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Chair of the Board
The Chair, Lesley Roberts, is responsible
for chairing board meetings and overseeing
the official business of the Soho Housing
Association Ltd in line with the Rules and
Standing Orders of the organisation. Her
duties include:

Committees

•

As part of the independent board effectiveness review this
year, the board carried out a comprehensive review and update
of the organisation’s standing orders and terms of reference
of the committees to shorten the documents, eliminating
repetition and relocating supporting documentation and
information to an online board resource area and reflecting
on the required balance of board skills and experience. The
changes included:

•

•

•

providing leadership to Soho Housing
board members, setting tone, culture,
vision and strategic direction
being an ambassador for the
organisation, growing a network of
contacts and maintaining good relations
with key stakeholders and partners
having an overview of the integrity and
probity of the organisation and ensuring
it adheres to its Mission
Ensuring the skills set and capacity of the
board is sufficient to properly lead and
safeguard the organisation

Shareholders
We are extremely fortunate to have a
committed body of shareholders who
feel passionately about the organisation.
Shareholders include founder members,
a proportion of residents, people from
local businesses and others with a local
connection. Shareholders meet twice a year
to optimise lines of communication and
engagement.

The rules of the committees are described in their terms of
reference. Certain matters are delegated to committees of the
board to debate whilst decision making rests with the board
itself.

Review of Terms of Reference

•

Terms revised to bring them in line with the ‘essential
requirements’ of the board in the NHF Code of Governance
(which the board has previously adopted), and to reflect
best practice
Revised job description and role for the chair of the board
and of the committees, and for board members

•

Audit & Risk Committee

The committee meets on at least a quarterly basis. Its role
and delegated responsibilities include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

review of the long term business plan for Soho Housing
for board approval
review of statutory accounts for board approval
review of the value for money statement
review of internal and external audits and subsequent
action plans
review of asset and liability register
review of risk framework, risk documents and the
board’s appetite for risk
reviews of other financial or risk-related matters that
the board see fit to pass to the committee

Soho Ltd Board

As a wholly owned subsidiary, Soho Ltd, is a separate brand
established to operate the commercial activities of Soho
Housing with the intention of optimising related returns,
profile raising, identifying and supporting new business
opportunities. The Soho Ltd Board meet four times
a year and report back to Soho Housing Board.
•
•
•
•

Commercially focussed to attract new revenues
Coordinates Soho Housing’s commercial business
activities
A tax efficient entity for activities such as joint ventures
Assists with business profile raising, relationship
building and new opportunities
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Committees (cont’d)
People & Governance Committee

Major Works Committee

•

•

Formerly called the Remuneration & Nominations
Committee, the committee holds at least two
meetings every year. Its role and delegated
responsibilities include:

•
•
•

•

•

•
•

ensuring that the remuneration policy for
employees supports the aims and objectives
of Soho Housing
recommending the remuneration budget for
the following financial year for board approval
approving the chair’s appraisal of the chief
executive
assisting in succession planning for the
board, and recruitment of new board
members
initiating reports and investigations regarding
remuneration and appointment of board
members as it sees fit
nominating board members empowered
to act for the committee in relation to
disciplinary and appeals panels and for any
representation on an employment tribunal or
other similar bodies
accountable for the remuneration budget for
all employees including the chief executive
any other HR related matters that the board
see fit to pass to the committee

In the year we formed a new committee to oversee
the programmed capital maintenance works.
The committee meets once a month. Its role and
delegated responsibilities include:

•

•
•

•
•

•

approving the selection process and appointment
of the Programme Manager and Contractor within
the budget limits set by the board and agreeing
contract terms with the Programme Manager and
Contractor
approving any additional works identified and the
use of any contingency funds within budget limits
set by the board
approving reallocation of budget amounts within
the overall limit set by the Board.
approving the delivery timetable and Programme
delivery methodology including suggested
approach and tenant communications
taking reports from the Programme Manager on
the progress of the Programme
taking any non-financial decisions in relation to
implementation of the Programme, escalated by
the CEO.
assessing the risks to the Programme at each
meeting, their mitigation and implementation of
recommendations

Committee Members
Audit & Risk Committee

Soho Ltd Board

People & Governance Committee

Major Works Committee

Rosemary Farrar (Chair)
Mark Ewing
Kerry Tromanhauser

Mark Gilkes (Chair)
Wendy Hardcastle
Lesley Roberts
Nick Stonley
Kerry Tromanhauser
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Nick Stonley (Chair)
Lesley Roberts
Dickon Robinson
Jeremy Titchen

Nick Stonley - Chair
Lesley Roberts
Dickon Robinson
Jeremy Titchen

Senior Management

During 2018-19 Soho Housing four senior managers:
•
•
•
•

Chief Executive
Finance Director
Residential Operations Director
Managing Director of Soho Ltd

Vivienne King
Chief Executive
Vivienne has been chief executive of Soho Housing
since May 2016. Previously director of business
operations and general counsel of The Crown Estate,
Vivienne has over 25 years’ experience in the real
estate industry. She is on the board of Women’s
Pioneer Housing Trust and chair of Real Estate
Balance, a pioneering gender diversity organisation.
Responsibilities of the chief executive include:
supporting and guiding the board in determining
the strategic vision for Soho Housing, leading the
team to deliver strong commercial performance
and quality customer service, to ensure compliance
with legislative and regulatory requirements and
to enable Soho Housing to thrive and grow in the
short, medium and long term.

David Morrow
Deputy CEO, Finance Director & Company
Secretary
David was the finance director at Soho Housing for
five years. To strengthen our succession strategy we
introduced the role of Deputy CEO, with David being
appointed to this role.
David was responsible for overseeing the finances,
I.T. and risk management of Soho Housing as well
as being the company secretary.
David has left the business in June 2019 and
his role is now being performed by Sean Reid,
Chartered Accountant, ICAEW, as Interim Finance
Director. Sean has 12 years of experience in UK
Real Estate development, investment and finance
following more than a decade in a variety of roles in
Investment Banking.

Charles Mtakati
Residential Operations Director

John Wallace
Interim Commercial Director

Charles oversaw the core operating areas of
our business – housing, asset management and
customer services and led the delivery of our vision
for housing.

Following the departure of Jeremy Eveleigh in April
2018, John Wallace has taken over responsibility for
Soho Housing’s commercial portfolio.

Charles left the business in June 2019 and his role
is now being performed by Sue Philpott as Interim
Housing Director. Sue has been a full member of
the Chartered Institute of Housing since 1987. She
has a Diploma in Business Excellence and over 25
years of working at an executive level, developing
and leading high performing teams within highly
regulated sectors.

With previous roles including Chief Exectutive of
Qatari Diar, UK and Managing Director of Omega
Land, John has a significant track record of
delivering development projects, managing people
and budgets to generate commercial solutions as
well as extensive experience in commercial and
residential asset management.
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Risk

Soho Housing has identified the following areas of risk to delivery of its Mission and corporate objectives.

Asset
Management

Commercial
Portfolio

Team & HR

Health & Safety

Lack of detailed stock
information leading
to poor property
performance or
inefficient assets.
Leasehold interests not
extended when viable
to do so. Value for
Money not achieved.
Leading to devaluation
of stock, reputational
risk, ineffective cost
management, poor
customer satisfaction,
enfranchisement and
costs, loss of homes &
income, breach of law
and regulatory impact.

Commercial portfolio
performance falls due
to market change,
economic downturn or
marketability of units.
Poor value extracted.
Increased costs and
loss of income through
voids, arrears or bad
debts. Unsuitable use of
commercial properties
leading to management
burden, conflicts with
residential tenants and/
or loss of reputation.

Lack of strong senior
team, poor decision
making, disengaged
staff leading to strategic
and operational
underperformance.
Uncompetitive reward
prevent engagement
of appropriate talent.
Lack of unified team &
collective responsibility.
Impacts on morale and
performance

Failure of legal
compliance leading to
an employee, resident,
contractor or member of
the public suffering harm
or leading to damage to
our assets, resulting in
legal and compensation
costs, loss of revenue,
loss of reputation and
license to operate and
impact on staff morale.

•

•

•

Key Mitigations
•
•

•
•
•

•
•

20

Updated Stock
Condition Surveys in
place
Mandatory service
records accurately
maintained and
recorded
Regular maintenance
undertaken and fed
into stock database
Major Works
Programme being
designed
Annual budgets
prepared in line
with the planned
preventative
maintenance
programme
Monitoring contractor
performance and
benchmarking.
In house expertise,
strategic property
review and strategic
approach to short
leases

•

•

•

•
•
•

Reinvestment
programme in place
Regular inspections
to ensure tenants
maintaining units in
good order
Thorough due
diligence to ensure
lettings to good
covenants and
financial security
taken.
Improved
understanding of
portfolio’s potential
with increasing in
house expertise
Commercial brand
protocol
Regular reporting of
portfolio performance
to board
In house expertise
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•
•

•

•
•

Leadership team
recruitment and
engagement
programme
Annual team survey
Strategic objectives
explained and
socialized to secure
buy-in from staff
Core values owned
by staff and an
appraisal system
and competency
framework which
supports this
Specialist HR
consultant in post
Performance
management system
to achieve objectives
and individual
targets

•

•

•

•
•

Health & safety
management system
and appropriate
policies in place
Health & Safety
board and senior
management team
reports and regular
H&S working group
meetings
Continuous
improvement to
life safety systems
installed to ensure
our properties
protect our residents
A refreshed
compliance
programme to
further improve
compliance based on
rotation programmes
Thorough
compartmentation
programme initiated
Introducing regular
review of H&S
management with
outsourced expert
advisors

Value for Money
Value for money is a strategic objective for Soho
Housing controlled by the Board who monitor
performance and seek assurance through
independent audit. Soho Housing benchmarks its
services through the sector scorecard, Housemark
and its own KPIs based on its knowledge of good
practice in the sector which enables it to measure,
understand and improve its performance, including
cost of delivery.
Soho Housing is regulated by the Regulator of Social
Housing which has published a standard setting out
its requirements in respect of value for money. Soho
Housing welcomes the standard and has adopted
the Regulator’s seven performance metrics in this
statement.
Our value for money assessment below considers
the following:
•
Enabling delivery of affordable housing
•
Comparing value
•
Providing social value
•
Income and Expenditure breakdown
•
Value for money future plans
Enabling delivery of affordable housing in the
heart of the city
Value for money is a strategic objective for Soho
Housing, as explained in our 2018-2020 Business
Strategy. Soho Housing is dedicated to operating in
one of the most expensive locations in one of the
most expensive cities on the globe. This presents
a number of challenges reflected in our metrics. In
order to continue to thrive in this environment, Soho
Housing works a substantial commercial property
portfolio to support its costs of delivery. Whereas
for many registered providers, diversification into
market based activity is a relatively new enterprise,
for Soho Housing, it is in the DNA.

Existing property
Our responsive repairs are delivered through an
outsourced provider with an in house post inspection
regime. Customer satisfaction surveys are carried
out personally by our customer services team for
20% of our repairs visits and contribute to contractor
appraisal. Post visit satisfaction surveys produced
an average of 80.8% in the year. Planned and
cyclical maintenance is carried out by contractors,
monitored and approved by our own in house team.
The programme is informed by recent stock condition
surveys carried out across the portfolio.
Development
Growth is diversified at Soho Housing to include
affordable tenures, market residential and commercial
assets reflecting our enabling business model
described above. The investment cost is factored
into the Board’s long term business plan and stress
tested to ensure organization resilience. 2017/18
was Soho Housing’s year of significant investment in
new stock with the association shouldering above its
proportionate share of the sector’s drive to improve
the housing shortage. In 2018/19 we started to adopt
a more modest growth strategy but nevertheless
through our own development activity, we added 14
additional homes to our stock, all based in our core
portfolio in Soho, which is an achievement for an
association of our size.

Soho Housing
2017-18

Benchmark
2017-18

Soho Housing
2018-19

12.6%

5.2%

2.0%

2.0%

20.0%

2.0%

[2b] New supply - Non-social housing units %

17.0%

0%

4%

[2c] Total supply new housing units %

17.4%

0%

2%

39%

36%

38%

182%

202%

132%

£6,934

£4,442

£7,950

[6a] Operating margin - social housing lettings %

11%

29%

10%

[6b] Operating margin - overall %

20%

29%

20%

[7] Return on capital employed %

1.2%

3%

1.1%

[1] Reinvestment %
[2a] New supply - Social housing units %

[3] Gearing %
[4] EDITBA MRI
[5] Headline social housing cost per unit
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Value for Money - providing social value
Our local social housing mission is to provide and
protect social and discounted homes in our central
London communities for families and others with
local connection. Our work makes a vital difference to
the diversity of central London and the health of the
communities within it.
Our strategic objectives enable us to deliver our
Vision to provide quality homes that people are proud
to live in, in environments they want to be in and
enjoy. Under our strategic objective for Growth and
Maintenance we provide growth in and sustain safe
and quality homes at affordable tenures for people
who would have difficulty finding central London
accommodation in the private sector. Our strategic
objective for Customer explains our ambition to
provide a personal service as a result of being a
small provider, knowing our residents so that we can
support their wellbeing. In achieving this objective,
we work with partners including Local Authorities
to provide support with care, benefits and training
opportunities such as IT.

Income & Expenditure
The Sankey chart below describes our 2018/19
income and expenditure.

22

Soho Housing Annual Report and Accounts 2018-19

Value for Money - future plans
Future years will continue to see change within
Soho Housing as we continue to deliver our strategic
objectives. Value for money initiatives will include:
• Procurement of a major works programme to
meet our commitment for safe and quality homes.
• A tender programme for the supply of most of
our maintenance services through our outsourced
business model in order to enhance service levels
and drive down costs
• A review of our social housing costs per unit in
order to improve operating margin
• Working effectively with Local Authorirties and
other partners to guide residents to support with
benefits and training and provide information on
local services and activities.
• Investment in our people with a new training
programme to improve staff expertise and the
services we provide to our residents.
However, as noted in the Value for Money report
in the 2017/18 annual report and accounts, the
ongoing burden of legacy maintenance works together
with continued enhanced health and safety works
means that a return to benchmark levels for EBITDA
MRI, operating margin and cost per property, was
not targeted this year and will not be achieved in
2019/20.

Board Report
Compliance with Governance and Financial
Viability Standard
The board confirms that the Group and Association
have met the Homes and Communities Agency’s
regulatory expectations in the governance and
financial viability standard.
The Association has adopted the 2015 NHF Code
of Governance and carried out a self-certification
review of compliance during the year which did
not reveal of any areas of non-compliance with the
Code.
Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities in
Respect of the Accounts
The board members are responsible for preparing
the report of the board and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Co-operative and Community Benefit Society law
and social housing legislation require the board
members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).
In preparing these financial statements, the board
members are required to:
•
•
•

•

select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards and the Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting by registered social housing
providers 2014 have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the group and association will
continue in business.

The board members are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the group and association’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the group and
association and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the
Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
(Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and
Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction
for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing
2015. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the group and association and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The board is responsible for ensuring that the report
of the board is prepared in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting by
registered social housing providers 2014.

Financial statements are published on the group and
association’s website in accordance with legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements, which may vary
from legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance
and integrity of the group and association’s website is
the responsibility of the board members. The board
members’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing
integrity of the financial statements contained therein.
Information for the Auditors
We, the board members who held office at the date of
approval of these Financial Statements as set out above
each confirm, so far as we are aware, that:
•
•

There is no relevant audit information of which the
company’s auditors are unaware; and
We have taken all the steps that we ought to have
taken as directors in order to make ourselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the auditors are unaware of that information.

Statement of Compliance
The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and
maintaining the whole system of internal control and
reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board recognises that such a system can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or loss or eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives.
The system of internal controls is designed to manage
key risks and to provide reasonable assurance that
planned business objectives and outcomes are
achieved. It also exists to give reasonable assurance
about the preparation and reliability of financial and
operational information and the safeguarding of the
Association’s assets and interests. In order to respond
to the rent issue referred to on page 7, during the year
the Board introduced a number of improvements to its
internal controls framework which confirms sufficient
evidence of systems of internal controls in place.
In meeting its responsibilities, the Board has adopted
a risk-based approach to internal controls which
are embedded within the normal management and
governance process. This approach includes the
regular evaluation of the nature and extent of risks
to which the Association is exposed. This approach is
consistent with best practice.
The Board has delegated the responsibility for
managing internal controls to the Audit and Risk
Committee. This responsibility is reflected within
its terms of reference. The Board has established a
business planning, risk and control framework.
By Order of the Board:

Signed:
Lesley Roberts, Chair of the Board		
Date: 19 August 2019
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Report of the Independent
Auditor
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Soho
Housing Association Limited (“the Association”)
for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise
of the consolidated and association statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated and
association statement of financial position, the
consolidated and association statement of changes
in reserves, the consolidated cash flow statement
and notes to the financial statement. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:
•

•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Association’s affairs as at
31 March 2019 and of the Group’s and the
Association’s surplus for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations
1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and
the Accounting Direction for Private Registered
Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group and Association in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us
to report to you where:
•
•

the board members use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
the board members have not disclosed in the
financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s or the Association’s ability
to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other Information
The board are responsible for the other information.
Other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information including the 2018-19 Highlights, Chair
and CEO’s Introduction, Round-Up of the Year’s
Activities, Community & Environment, Customer
Service & Housing, Looking after our Homes, Growth
& Commercial Activity, Governance and Board
Report and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where we are required by the Co-operative or
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing
and Regeneration Act 2008 to report to you if, in our
opinion:
•

•
•
•
•

the information given in the Report of the Board
for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is not consistent with
the financial statements;
adequate accounting records have not been kept
by the parent Association; or
a satisfactory system of control has not been
maintained over transactions; or
the parent Association financial statements are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the board
As explained more fully in the board members
responsibilities statement set out on page 23, the
board is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the board members determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the board
are responsible for assessing the Group and the
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the board either intend to liquidate
the Group or the Association or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.
org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.
Use of our Report
This report is made solely to the members of the
Association, as a body, in accordance with the
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Association’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Association
and the members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BDO LLP
Statutory Auditor
Gatwick
9 September 2019
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in
England and Wales (with registered number OC305127)
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Notes

Year ended

Year Ended

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

Consolidated

Association

Consolidated

Association

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Turnover

2

9,113

9,113

9,157

9,157

Operating expenditure

2

(7,301)

(7,301)

(7,280)

(7,280)

Operating surplus

2

1,812

1,812

1,877

1,877

Donation from subsidiary

14

-

50

-

1,532

Share of surplus from joint
venture

14

50

-

349

-

Increase/decrease in valuation of
pension

10

(883)

(883)

Increase/decrease in valuation of
investment properties

13

2,448

2,448

3,805

3,805

3,427

3,427

6,031

7,214

4

4

31

31

Interest receivable
Interest and financing costs

6

(1,520)

(1,520)

(1,348)

(1,348)

Surplus before tax

7

1,911

1,911

4,714

5,897

Taxation

11

-

-

237

-

1,911

1,911

4,951

5,897

Surplus for the year and Total
comprehensive income for the
year

The financial statements on pages 26 to 59 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 19 August 2019 and
were signed on its behalf by:
Board Member:

Board Member:

Secretary:

…………………………………
Lesley Roberts

…………………………………
Rosemary Farrar

…………………………………
Vivienne King

The notes on pages 30 to 59 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Statement of Financial Position
Year ended

Year Ended

31-Mar-19
Consolidated

Consolidated

Association

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000
Fixed assets

31-Mar-18

Association

Tangible fixed assets

Notes
12

95,281

95,281

90,182

90,182

Investment properties

13

64,016

64,016

65,157

65,157

159,297

159,297

155,339

155,339

Current assets
Trade and other debtors

15

2,119

2,119

1,638

1,638

Cash and cash equivalents

16

3,167

3,167

4,477

4,477

5,286

5,286

6,115

6,115

(4,187)

(4,216)

(4,273)

(4,302)

1,099

1,070

1,842

1,813

160,396

160,367

161,996

161,967

Less: Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

17

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year

18

(83,102)

(83,102)

(83,305)

(83,305)

Pension Provision

(1,507)

(1,507)

-

-

Total net assets

75,787

75,758

73,876

73,847

Reserves
Non-equity share capital

21

-

-

-

-

Income and expenditure reserve

40,268

40,239

40,805

40,776

Revaluation reserve

35,519

35,519

33,071

33,071

Total reserves

75,787

75,758

73,876

73,847

The financial statements on pages 26 to 59 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 19 August 2019 and
were signed on its behalf by:
Board Member:

Board Member:

Secretary:

…………………………………
Lesley Roberts

…………………………………
Rosemary Farrar

…………………………………
Vivienne King

The notes on pages 30 to 59 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Statement of Changes in Reserves
Income and
expenditure reserve

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

39,659

29,266

68,925

4,951

-

4,951

Transfer from revaluation reserve to income
and expenditure reserves

(3,805)

3,805

-

Balance as at 1 April 2018

40,805

33,071

73,876

1,911

-

Transfer from revaluation reserve to income
and expenditure reserves

(2,448)

2,448

-

Balance at 31 March 2019

40,268

35,519

75,787

Income and
expenditure reserve

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

38,684

29,266

67,950

5,897

-

5,897

(3,805)

3,805

-

40,776

33,071

73,847

1,911

-

1,911

(2,448)

2,448

-

40,239

35,519

75,758

Group

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Surplus for the year and total
Comprehensive Income for the year

Profit for the year and total Comprehensive
Income for the year

1,911

Prior year adjustment pension

Association

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Profit for the year and total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Transfer from revaluation reserve to income
and expenditure reserves
Balance as at 1 April 2018

Profit for the year and total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Transfer from revaluation reserve to income
and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31 March 2019

The notes on pages 30 to 59 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended

Year Ended

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

£’000

£’000

2,183

1,969

(2,247)

(11,158)

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

-

23

Proceeds from sales of investment property

-

-

(595)

(12,560)

674

3,557

50

1,532

4

31

(1,552)

(1,380)

New secured loans

1,000

3,000

Repayment of borrowings

(827)

(831)

Net cash generated from operating activities (see Note i)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of investment property
Grants received
Distribution from joint venture
Interest received
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(1,310)

(15,817)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

4,477

20,294

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

3,167

4,477

£’000

£’000

1,911

4,951

-

(237)

Note i
Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the year
Taxation
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

1,364

1,176

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other debtors

(78)

(135)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors

632

95

12

-

-

-

Increase/(decrease) in leaseholder fund
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals
Share of operating surplus/deficit in joint venture
Revaluation of investment properties

(50)

(349)

(2,448)

(3,805)

Adjustments for investing or financing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets
Government grants amortised

-

-

-

(618)

Government grants utilised in the year

(643)

(426)

Interest payable

1,487

1,348

Interest received

(4)

(31)

2,183

1,969

Net cash generated from operating activities
The notes on pages 30 to 59 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Legal Status
Soho Housing Association Limited is incorporated in England under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014 and is registered with the Homes and Communities Agency as a Private Registered Provider of Social Housing. The
registered office is 120 Charing Cross Road, London, WC2H 0JR.
The group comprises the following entities:
Name
Soho Housing Association Limited
Soho Limited
1.

Incorporation
Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014
Companies Act 2006

Registered/Non-registered
Registered
Non-registered

Principal Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and the Statement of Recommended Practice for registered
housing providers 2014; ‘Accounting by registered social housing providers’. The Group is required under the Cooperative and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969 to prepare consolidated Group
accounts.
The financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and
the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. The accounts are prepared on the
historical cost basis of accounting as modified by the revaluation of investments and are presented in sterling.
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS102.
In the preparation of these financial statements, the requirements set out in: “Amendments to FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland: Multi-employer defined benefit plans” have been
adopted early. This has resulted in changes to the accounting policy for the SHPS multi-employer scheme from the
start of the reporting period. This means that accounting for SHPS has not been consistently applied as compared to
reporting in prior years. Further information on the impact of early adopting these requirements is set out in note 10.
The Group is a public benefit entity group and the Association is a public benefit entity, as defined by FRS 102.
Parent company disclosure exemptions
In preparing the separate financial statements of the parent company, advantage has been taken of the following
disclosure exemptions available in FRS102:




No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company,
Disclosures in respect of the parent company’s financial instruments have not been presented as equivalent
disclosures have been provided in respect of the group as a whole, and
No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management personnel of the parent
company as their remuneration is included in the totals for the group as a whole.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of Soho Housing Association Limited and all of its
subsidiary undertakings as at 31 March 2019 using the acquisition method of accounting as required. Where the
acquisition method is used, the results of subsidiary undertakings are included from the date of acquisition, being the
date, the Group obtains control.
Going concern
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes an ability to continue
operating for the foreseeable future. The Government’s announcements in July 2015 impacting on the future income
of the Group led to a reassessment of the Group’s business plan as well as an assessment of imminent or likely
future breach in borrowing covenants. No significant concerns have been noted and we consider it appropriate to
continue to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
1.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for
revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ
from those estimates. The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant
effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
a.

Development expenditure. The Group capitalises development expenditure in accordance with the
accounting policy described below. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that
development scheme is confirmed, usually when Board approval has taken place including access to the
appropriate funding. In determining whether a project is likely to cease, management monitors the
development and considers if changes have occurred that result in impairment.

b.

Categorisation of housing properties. The Group has undertaken a detailed review of the intended use of
all housing properties. In determining the intended use, the Group has considered if the asset is held for social
benefit, shared ownership, market rented or to earn commercial rentals. Wherever possible costs are allocated
between the units based on actual costs incurred with common costs being allocated based on a combination
of floor areas and expected future net revenue streams. The Group has determined that market rented housing
property and commercial properties are investment properties. Components are written off at net book value
when replaced.

c.

Impairment. The housing property portfolio for the Group is assessed for indicators of impairment at each
statement of financial position date. Where indicators are identified then a detailed assessment is undertaken
to compare the carrying amounts of assets or cash generating units for which impairment is indicated to their
recoverable amounts. Impairment indicators include void levels, changes in regulation that impact on the future
rent levels, the outcome of stock condition surveys and external changes which impact on future cash flows
(for example, maintenance costs). An option appraisal is carried out to determine the option which produces
the highest net realisable value. Valuations on rental return or potential sale proceeds are obtained and used
to inform the options. The Group looks at the net realisable value, under the options available, when
considering the recoverable amount for the purposes of impairment assessment. The recoverable amount is
taken to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or value in use of an asset or cash generating unit.
The assessment of value in use may involve considerations of the service potential of the assets or cash
generating units concerned or the present value of future cash flows to be derived from them appropriately
adjusted to account for any restrictions on their use. No properties have been valued at VIU-SP.

d.

Financial instruments. Consideration is based on terms and conditions of each loan whether or not they are
basic under FRS102.

Other key sources of estimation and assumptions:
a.

Tangible fixed assets. Other than investment properties, tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their
useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual
values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives,
factors such as technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken into
account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of
the asset and projected disposal values.

b.

Revaluation of investment properties. Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other
properties not held for social benefit or for use in the business. Investment properties are measured at cost
on initial recognition and subsequently carried at fair value determined annually by qualified valuers and
derived from market evidence for comparable properties. No depreciation is provided. Changes in fair value
are recognised in income or expenditure.

c.

Pension and other post-employment benefits. Under the terms of the Group’s membership of the Social
Housing Pension Scheme, the Group is obliged to make payments in respect of past service benefits to the
scheme. The payments to be made are specified by the scheme and are payable over a number of years; as
such this is a financing transaction and the Group discounts the gross amounts payable using an appropriate
discount rate. The rate used is based on the yield of corporate bonds. Further details are given in note 10.
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
1.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Acquisition accounting
Soho Limited has been included in the group financial statements using the purchase method of accounting.
Accordingly, the group statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows include the results and cash
flows of Soho Limited for the year.
Joint Ventures and Associates
An entity is treated as a joint venture where the group holds an interest and shares control under a contractual
arrangement with one or more parties external to the group.
An entity is treated as an associated undertaking where the group has a participating interest and exercises significant
influence over its operating and financial policies.
In the Group accounts, joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method an equity
investment is initially recognised at the transaction price (including transaction costs) and is subsequently adjusted
to reflect the investor’s share of the profit or loss, other comprehensive income and equity of the associate. The
consolidated income and expenditure account indicates the group’s share of the joint venture’s turnover and includes
the group’s share of the operating results, interest, pre-tax results and attributable taxation of such undertakings
based on audited financial statements. In the consolidated balance sheet, the group’s share of the identifiable gross
assets (including any amortised premium paid on acquisition) and its share of the gross liabilities attributable to its
joint venture are shown separately.
Any premium on acquisition is dealt with under the goodwill policy.
Turnover and revenue recognition
Turnover represents rental income receivable, amortised capital grant, revenue grants from local authorities and
Homes England, income from the sale of shared ownership and other properties developed for outright sale and
other income and are recognised in relation to the period when the goods or services have been supplied.
Rental income is recognised in revenue on a time apportioned basis and is stated net of voids. Income from property
sales is recognised on legal completion. Supporting People Income is recognised under the contractual
arrangements as the services are provided.
Support income and costs including Supporting People income and costs
Supporting People (SP) contract income received from Administering Authorities is accounted for as SP income in
the Turnover as per note 2. The related support costs are matched against this income in the same note. Support
charges included in the rent are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income from social housing lettings
note 3 and matched against the relevant costs.
Service charges
Service charge income and costs are recognised on an accruals basis. The Group operates both fixed and variable
service charges on a scheme by scheme basis in full consultation with residents. Where variable service charges
are used the charges will include an allowance for the surplus or deficit from prior years, with the surplus being
returned to residents by a reduced charge and a deficit being recovered by a higher charge. Until these are returned
or recovered they are held as creditors or debtors in the Statement of Financial Position.
Where periodic expenditure is required a provision may be built up over the years, in consultation with the residents;
until these costs are incurred this liability is held in the Statement of Financial Position within long term creditors.
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1.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment Income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Loan interest costs
Loan interest costs are calculated using the effective interest method of the difference between the loan amount at
initial recognition and amount of maturity of the related loan.
Loan finance issue costs
These are amortised over the life of the related loan. Loans are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the
amount of the net proceeds after issue, plus increases to account for any subsequent amounts amortised. Where
loans are redeemed during the year, any redemption penalty and any connected loan finance issue costs are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income account in the year in which the redemption took place.
Taxation
The Association’s activities are charitable and therefore not liable to tax, to the extent that any surpluses are applied
to the charitable objects. The subsidiary has no liability to tax as it is distributes all its taxable profits to the Association.
Therefore, no provisions for corporation and / or deferred tax have been recognised.
Value Added Tax
The Group charges VAT on some of its income and is able to recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. All
amounts disclosed in the accounts are inclusive of VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and not
recoverable.
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Housing properties
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Donated land/assets or assets acquired at
below market value from a government source, i.e. local authority, are included gross up in the Statement of Financial
Position at the fair value less consideration paid.
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. These are reclassified as housing
properties on practical completion of construction.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Where a housing property comprises two or more major components with substantially different useful lives (ULs),
each component is accounted for separately and depreciated over its individual UL. Expenditure relating to
subsequent replacement or renewal of components is capitalised as incurred.
The association depreciates freehold housing properties by component on a straight-line basis over the estimated
UELs of the component categories.
UELs for identified components are as follows:
Boilers
Kitchens
Bathroom
Electrics
Mechanical
Lifts
Roofs
Windows
Structure

Years
15
20
30
20
30
15
60
30
100
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Soho Housing Association Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
1.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
The association depreciates housing properties held on long term leases in the same manner as freehold properties,
except where the unexpired lease term is shorter than the longest component life envisaged, in which case the
unexpired term of the lease is adopted as the useful life of the relevant component category.
Property disposals are recognised on completion of the sale.
Depreciation is charged on other tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives which are
as follows:
Fixtures & fittings
Computer equipment

Years
4 - 10
5

Low cost home ownership properties
The costs of low-cost home ownership properties are split between current and fixed assets on the basis of the first
tranche portion. The first tranche portion is accounted for as a current asset and the sale proceeds shown in turnover.
The remaining element of the shared ownership property is accounted for as a fixed asset and subsequent sales treated
as sales of fixed assets.
Capitalisation of interest and administration costs
Interest on loans financing development is capitalised up to the date of the completion of the scheme and only when
development activity is in progress.
Administration costs relating to development activities are capitalised only to the extent that they are incremental to the
development process and directly attributable to bringing the property into their intended use.
Property managed by agents
Where the Group carries the majority of the financial risk on property managed by agents, income arising from the
property is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Account.
Where the agency carries the majority of the financial risk, income includes only that which relates solely to the Group.
In both cases, the assets and associated liabilities are included in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position.
Leasing and hire purchase
Operating leases and payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.
Reverse premiums and similar incentives received on leases to enter into operating lease agreements are released to
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the lease.
Investment property
Investment property includes commercial and other properties not held for the social benefit of the Group. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition, which includes purchase cost and any directly attributable
expenditure, and subsequently at fair value at the reporting date. Fair value is determined annually by external valuers
and derived from the current market rents and investment property yields for comparable real estate, adjusted if
necessary for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. No depreciation is provided.
Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income.
Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.
Short-term debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors with no stated interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are recorded at transaction
price. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the income statement in other operating expenses.
Non-government grants
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised under the performance model. If there are no specific
performance requirements the grants are recognised when received or receivable. Where grant is received with
specific performance requirements it is recognised as a liability until the conditions are met and then it is recognised as
Turnover.
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1.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Social Housing and other government grants
Where developments have been financed wholly or partly by social housing and other grants, the amount of the grant
received has been included as deferred income and recognised in Turnover over the estimated useful life of the
associated asset structure (not land), under the accruals model. SHG received for items of cost written off in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income is included as part of Turnover.
When Social Housing Grant (SHG) in respect of housing properties in the course of construction exceeds the total
cost to date of those housing properties, the excess is shown as a current liability.
SHG must be recycled by the Group under certain conditions, if a property is sold, or if another relevant event takes
place. In these cases, the SHG can be used for projects approved by Homes England and Greater London Authority.
However, SHG may have to be repaid if certain conditions are not met. If grant is not required to be recycled or
repaid, any unamortised grant is recognised as Turnover. In certain circumstances, SHG may be repayable, and, in
that event, is a subordinated unsecured repayable debt.
Non-monetary government grant
On disposal of assets for which non-repayable government grants are held as liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position, the unamortised amount in creditors is released as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Recycling of Capital Grant
Where Social Housing Grant is recycled, as described above, the SHG is credited to a fund which appears as a
creditor until used to fund the acquisition of new properties, where recycled grant is known to be repayable it is shown
as a creditor within one year. Recycling capital grant can be abated when sale proceeds are less than the original
cost.
Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF)
Receipts from the sale of SHG funded properties less the net book value of the property and the costs of disposal
are credited to the DPF, this creditor is carried forward until it is used to fund the acquisition of new social housing.
Employee Benefits
A liability is recognised to the extent of any employee benefits including unused holiday pay entitlement which has
accrued at the balance sheet date and carried forward to future periods. This is measured at the undiscounted cost
to the employees of the future holiday entitlement and accrued at the balance sheet date.
Pension costs
The group participates in the multi-employer defined benefit Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). For financial
years ending on or after 31 March 2019, the way in which the defined benefit pension obligation in SHPS is stated
in the financial statements has changed. Previously there has been insufficient information available to account for
these obligations on a defined benefit basis (i.e. stating assets and obligations). As a result, and as required by
FRS 102, the obligation has been accounted for by stating the present value of agreed future deficit repayment
contributions. For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019 sufficient information is available to account for
the obligations on a defined benefit basis. The information provided during the year gives the liability at 31 March
2018 however, as this information only became available in the current year and after the ﬁnancial statements for
the prior year had been authorised for issue, the change in accounting has been recorded on the ﬁrst day of the
current year, with no restatement of comparatives, in accordance with the requirements set out in: “Amendments to
FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland: Multi-employer defined
benefit plans. Whilst comparative figures have not been restated the information provided about the liability at 1
April 2018 has been included in the pension note as it provides useful information to a reader of the accounts. The
true comparative information is represented by the SHPS deficit reduction creditor as set out in the comparatives to
the creditors’ notes.
The liability recognised for the present value of the deficit agreement (Association: £6,196k, Group: £6,196k) has
been derecognised and the net pension deficit at 31 March 2018 (Association: £1,507k, Group: £1,507k) has been
recognised through other comprehensive income in the year.
Under defined benefit accounting the Scheme assets are measured at fair value. Scheme liabilities are measured on
an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at appropriate high quality corporate
bond rates. The net surplus or deficit is presented separately from other net assets on the Statement of Financial
Position. The current service cost and costs from settlements and curtailments are charged to operating surplus. Past
service costs are recognised in the current reporting period. Interest is calculated on the net defined benefit liability.
Re-measurements are reported in other comprehensive income.
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1.

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Reserves
The revaluation reserve represents the difference between the fair value of investment properties and their historical
cost carrying value.
The income and expenditure reserve represent the accumulated surplus generated by the Group / Association since
its formation.
Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at transaction price initially, plus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
At the end of each reporting period, financial instruments are measured as follows, without any deduction for
transaction costs the entity may incur on sale or other disposal:
Debt instruments that meet the conditions in paragraph 11.8(b) of FRS 102 are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except where the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. In this case the debt
instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar
debt.
Financial instruments held by the Group are classified as basic and are held at amortised cost.
Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
The following financial instruments are assessed individually for impairment:
(a)
All equity instruments regardless of significance; and
(b)
Other financial assets that are individually significant.
Other financial instruments are assessed for impairment either individually or grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics.
An impairment loss is measured as follows on the following instruments measured at cost or amortised cost:
(a)
For an instrument measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.
(b)
For an instrument measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the entity would receive for the asset if it
were to be sold at the reporting date.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
either directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal cannot result in a carrying amount (net of any
allowance account) which exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously
been recognised. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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2(a).

Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus
2019

Turnover

Operating
expenditure

Operating
surplus

£’000

£’000

£’000

6,388

(5,987)

401

14

(79)

(65)

Development administration

-

(615)

(615)

Pension scheme deficit cost

-

(39)

(39)

58

(26)

32

72

(759)

(687)

1,878

(428)

1,450

775

(127)

648

2,653

(555)

2,098

9,113

(7,301)

1,812

Group

Social housing lettings (note 3)
Other social housing activities
Supporting people

Management fees
Activities other than social housing
Commercial properties
Market rent housing

Total

2018

Group

Social housing lettings (note 3)
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
Development administration
Pension scheme deficit cost
Management fees

Turnover

Operating
expenditure

Operating
surplus

£’000

£’000

£’000

6,659

(5,883)

776

14

(70)

(56)

-

(616)

(616)

-

(101)

(101)

65

(23)

42

79

(810)

(731)

1,657

(507)

1,150

762

(80)

682

2,419

(587)

1,832

9,157

(7,280)

1,877

Activities other than social housing
Commercial properties
Market rent housing

Total
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2(b).

Turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus
2019

Turnover

Operating
expenditure

Operating
surplus

£’000

£’000

£’000

6,388

(5,987)

401

14

(79)

(65)

Development administration

-

(615)

(615)

Pension scheme deficit cost

-

(39)

(39)

Association

Social housing lettings (note 3)
Other social housing activities
Supporting people

Management fees

58

(26)

32

72

(759)

(687)

1,878

(428)

1,450

775

(127)

648

2,653

(555)

2,098

9,113

(7,301)

1,812

Activities other than social housing
Commercial properties
Market rent housing

Total

2018

Association

Social housing lettings (note 3)
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
Development administration
Pension scheme deficit cost
Management fees

Turnover

Operating
expenditure

Operating
surplus

£’000

£’000

£’000

6,659

(5,883)

776

14

(70)

(56)

-

(616)

(616)

-

(101)

(101)

65

(23)

42

79

(810)

(731)

1,657

(507)

1,150

762

(80)

682

2,419

(587)

1,832

9,157

(7,280)

1,877

Activities other than social housing
Commercial properties
Market rent housing
Total
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3.

Turnover and operating expenditure
2019

2018

£’000

£’000

5,050

5,016

700
638
-

599
618
426

6,388

6,659

Operating expenditure
Management
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Depreciation of Housing Properties
Accelerated depreciation on disposal of depreciation

(1,147)
(876)
(1,812)
(838)
(133)
28
(1,209)
-

(1,040)
(728)
(1,534)
(1,183)
(287)
50
(918)
(243)

Operating expenditure on Social Housing Lettings

(5,987)

(5,883)

Operating Surplus on Social Housing Lettings

401

776

76

56

Group & Association

Income
Rent receivable net of identifiable service charge
Service charge income:
Recurring
Amortised government grants
Government grants written back
Turnover from Social Housing Lettings

Void losses (being rental income lost as a result of property
not being let, although it is available for letting)
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4.

Accommodation owned, managed and in development
2019

2018

No. of
properties

No. of
properties

Owned

Owned

8

13

749

736

2

2

751

738

0

1

24

26

2019
No. of
properties

2018
No. of
properties

Centrepoint Soho Limited

26

26

St Mungo's Broadway

12

12

38

38

Social Housing
Under development at end of year:
General needs housing social rent
Under management at end of year:
General needs housing
Low-cost home ownership

Non-Social Housing
Under development at end of year:
Market rented
Under management at end of year:
Market rented
5.

40

Accommodation managed by others
Soho Housing owns property managed by other bodies.
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6.

Interest and financing costs

Defined benefit pension charge
On loans wholly or partly repayable in
more than five years

Less: interest capitalised on housing
properties under construction

Group

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

33

10

33

10

1,523

1,432

1,523

1,432

1,556

1,442

1,556

1,442

(36)

(94)

(36)

(94)

1,520

1,348

1,520

1,348

The weighted average interest on borrowings of 4.28% (2018: 4.14%) was used for calculating capitalised finance
costs.
7.

Surplus on ordinary activities
2019

2018

£’000

£’000

23

22

1

1

Taxation services

2

4

Service charge certification

4

4

Advice on services

2

3

233

233

22

22

-

-

1,209

1,161

157

15

The operating surplus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Auditors remuneration (excluding VAT):
Audit of the group financial statements*
Audit of subsidiaries
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates for other
services to the group:

Operating lease rentals:
- Land and buildings
- Office equipment
Impairment losses of housing properties
Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other fixed assets

* £23,000 (2018 - £23,000) of this is included within the association. Included in other fees to the auditor is £11,000
(2018: £11,000) relating to the association.
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8.

Directors’ remuneration
2019

2018

£’000

£’000

-

-

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by executive
Directors and former executive directors, including pension
contribution

316

364

The aggregate compensation paid to or receivable by Directors (key
management personnel), including national insurance and pension
contribution

316

386

The emoluments paid to the highest paid Director excluding pension
contributions

117

107

The aggregate amount of Directors or past Directors pensions,
excluding amounts payable under a properly funded pension scheme

-

-

The aggregate amount of any consideration payable to or receivable
by third parties for making available the services of a Director

-

-

The aggregate amount of any consideration payable to Directors for
loss of office

-

-

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by non-executive
Directors and former non-executive directors

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the pension scheme. The pension scheme is a final salary scheme
funded by annual contributions by the employer and employee. No enhanced or special terms apply. There are no
additional pension arrangements. Contributions by Soho Housing of £nil (2018: £6,492) were paid in addition to the
personal contributions of the Chief Executive.
Directors (key management personnel) are defined as members of the Board, the Chief Executive and any other
person who is a member of the Senior Management Team or its equivalent.
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9.

Employee information
Group

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

No.

No.

No.

No.

22

20

22

20

-

-

-

-

22

20

22

20

The average number of persons employed during the year expressed in full
time equivalents (35 hours per week) was:
Office staff
Wardens, caretakers and cleaners

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Staff costs
Wages and salaries

960

945

960

945

Social Security costs

107

105

107

105

Other pension costs

47

53

47

53

1,114

1,103

1,114

1,103

Aggregate number of full time equivalent staff whose remuneration
including pension contributions exceeded £60,000 in the period:

No.

No.

No.

No.

£60,000 - £70,000

1

1

1

1

£70,000 - £80,000

1

2

1

2

£80,000 - £90,000

1

-

1

-

£90,000 - £100,000

-

1

-

1

£100,000 - £110,000

1

1

1

1

£110,000 - £120,000

1

1

1

1
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10.

Pension obligations
The Group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multi-employer scheme which
provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30
December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical
Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined
benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at 30 September 2017. This
valuation revealed a deficit of £1,522m. A recovery plan has been put in place with the aim of removing this deficit by
30 September 2026.
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the Group is potentially liable for other
participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following
withdrawal from the Scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the Scheme deficit on
an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme.
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has not been possible for the Group to obtain sufficient
information to enable it to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme, therefore the Group has accounted
for the Scheme as a defined contribution scheme.
For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it is possible to obtain sufficient information to enable the Group
to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme.
For accounting purposes, two actuarial valuations for the scheme were carried out with effective dates of 31 March
2018 and 30 September 2018. The liability figures from each valuation are rolled forward to the relevant accounting
dates, if applicable, and are used in conjunction with the Group’s fair share of the Scheme’s total assets to calculate
the Group’s net deficit or surplus at the accounting period start and end dates.
The information presented for 2018 in relation to SHPS scheme reflects the initial position recognised at 1 April 2018.
PRESENT VALUES OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION, FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND DEFINED
BENEFIT ASSET (LIABILITY)

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Surplus (deficit) in plan
Unrecognised surplus
Defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised
Net defined benefit asset (liability) to be recognised
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(£000s)

(£000s)

4,689

4,815

6,196

6,151

(1,507)

(1,336)

-

-

(1,507)

(1,336)
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10. Pension obligations (continued)
RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Period ended
31 March 2019
(£000s)
Defined benefit obligation at start of period

6,151

Current service cost
Expenses

6

Interest expense

149

Contributions by plan participants

-

Actuarial losses (gains) due to scheme experience

95

Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial losses (gains) due to changes in financial
assumptions
Benefits paid and expenses

17
352
(574)

Liabilities acquired in a business combination

-

Liabilities extinguished on settlements

-

Losses (gains) on curtailments

-

Losses (gains) due to benefit changes

-

Exchange rate changes

-

Defined benefit obligation at end of period

6,196

RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Period ended
31 March 2019
(£000s)
Fair value of plan assets at start of period

4,815

Interest income

116

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest income) gain (loss)
Contributions by the employer

226

Contributions by plan participants
Benefits paid and expenses

106
(574)

Assets acquired in a business combination

-

Assets distributed on settlements

-

Exchange rate changes

-

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

4,689

The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended 31 March
2019 was £342,000.
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10. Pension obligations (continued)
DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (SOCI)
Period from
31 March 2018 to
31 March 2019
(£000s)
Current service cost
Expenses
Net interest expense

6
33

Losses (gains) on business combinations

-

Losses (gains) on settlements

-

Losses (gains) on curtailments

-

Losses (gains) due to benefit changes
Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SoCI)

39

DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Period ended
31 March 2019
(£000s)
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) gain (loss)

226

Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain (loss)

(95)

Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the present
value of the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

(17)

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present value of
the defined benefit obligation - gain (loss)

(352)

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus
not being recognisable) - gain (loss)

(238)

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable (excluding
amounts included in net interest cost) - gain (loss)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income - gain (loss)
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10. Pension obligations (continued)
ASSETS
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

(£000s)

(£000s)

Global Equity

789

951

Absolute Return

406

588

85

46

Distressed Opportunities
Credit Relative Value

86

-

270

183

21

159

Emerging Markets Debt

162

194

Risk Sharing

142

45

Insurance-Linked Securities

134

126

Property

106

222

Infrastructure

246

123

Alternative Risk Premia
Fund of Hedge Funds

Private Debt
Corporate Bond Fund

63

43

219

198

Long Lease Property

69

-

168

178

-

-

1,714

1,754

9

5

4,689

4,815

Secured Income
Over 15 Year Gilts
Liability Driven Investment
Net Current Assets
Total assets

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer’s own financial
instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer.
KEY ASSUMPTIONS
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

% per annum

% per annum

Discount Rate

2.29%

2.54%

Inflation (RPI)

3.30%

3.20%

Inflation (CPI)

2.30%

2.20%

Salary Growth

3.30%

3.20%

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

75% of maximum
allowance

75% of maximum
allowance

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2019 imply the following life expectancies:
Life expectancy at age
65
(Years)
Male retiring in 2019

21.8

Female retiring in 2019

23.5

Male retiring in 2039

23.2

Female retiring in 2039

24.7
Soho Housing Annual Report and Accounts 2018-19

47

Soho Housing Association Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
11.

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
UK corporation tax

Association

Group

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

-

-

-

(237)

1,911

5,987

1,911

4,714

363

1,138

363

1,120

Income not taxable for tax purposes
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous
period

(363)

(1,138)

(363)

(896)

-

-

-

(225)

Adjustments to tax charge due to change in rates

-

-

-

(12)

-

-

(237)

UK corporation tax on profit for the year

The tax assessed for the year differs to the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
applied to the surplus before tax. The differences
are explained below:
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard
corporation tax rate of 19% (2018:19%)
Effects of:

Current tax charge for the period
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12.

107,953
1,352
525
32
(138)
366
4,190
-

1,288
489
-

106,665
1,352
36
32
(138)
366
4,190
-

-

(7,720)

4,190
7,720

82,915

Net book value at the start of
the year

6,466

130

289

289

89,670

94,437

512

844

90,182

95,281

18,999

94,018

933

Net book value at the end of
the year

18,066

18,047

At end of the year

19

17,771
1,366
(138)
776
157
16,995
1,209
(138)
19
-

-

16,976
1,209
(138)
-

114,280
1,777
112,503

308

130

112,065

99,891
36
(138)
366
-

308

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

6,466
1,352
32
-

Total fixed assets

Furniture and
office equipment

Total Housing
Properties

Low cost home
ownership
Properties
completed

Social Housing
Properties for
letting under
Construction

Other fixed assets

Social Housing
Properties for
Letting Completed

-------------------------------------------- Housing Properties --------------------------------------------

At end of the year
Depreciation and impairment
At start of the year
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

Cost/ Valuation
At start of the year
Construction additions
Works to existing properties
Interest capitalised
Components write-offs
Component additions
Other additions
Transfer from investment
properties
Transfer from under
development

Group & association

Tangible fixed assets
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12.

1,587
436

810

287
70

842

1,300

366

£’000

Interest is capitalised at the cost of funds to the association and added to schemes under construction. Interest capitalised in 2019 was £36k at an interest rate of 4.28%

Carrying value of tangible fixed assets pledged as security for liabilities is £52.746m (2018:
£53.022m)

The aggregate amount of interest and finance costs included in the cost of housing properties

Components capitalised
Amounts charged to
expenditure

Works to existing properties
in the year:

£’000

90,182
95,281

Cost of properties includes £70,000 (2018: £79,000) for direct administrative costs capitalised
during the year

3,446
3,676

27,444

34,610

Short leaseholds

59,292

56,995

Long leaseholds

2018
£’000

2019
£’000

Freeholds

Housing Properties
comprise:

Tangible fixed assets
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13.

Investment properties held for letting
Group

At start of year
Additions

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

65,157

48,716

65,157

48,716

602

12,552

602

12,552

2,397

-

2,397

-

Transfer between tenure
Gain/(loss) from adjustment
in value

(6,588)

84

(6,588)

84

2,448

3,805

2,448

3,805

At end of year

64,016

65,157

64,016

65,157

Transfer from completed

Investment properties are valued annually on 31 March at fair value, determined by an independent, Savills, a
professional valuer. The valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors'
Appraisal and Valuation Manual. In valuing investment properties, a discounted cash flow methodology was adopted.
The surplus on the investment properties has been credited to the statement of comprehensive income for the year.
The surplus on revaluation of investment property arising of £2,448k has been credited to the statement of
comprehensive income for the year.
If investment property had been accounted for under the historic cost accounting rules, the properties would have been
measured as follows historic cost £25,642k, (2018: 32,806k)
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14.

Fixed asset investments
At 31 March 2018 the Group has the following interests in Joint Ventures and
Associates:
2019

2018

£’000

£’000

At start of the year

-

1,183

50

349

(50)

(1,532)

-

-

Share of current assets

-

-

Share of liabilities – due within one year

-

-

Share of liabilities – due after more than one year

-

-

Share of net assets

-

-

Share of capital commitments

-

-

Share of profit for the year
Distribution of profit
At end of the year
Represented by:

Group Companies
The group comprises the following entities, all registered in England:
Name
Soho Ltd
West Smithfield Development LLP
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Incorporation
and ownership
Company – 100%
LLP – 50%
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Regulated/
non-regulated
Non-regulated
Non-regulated

Nature of Business
Development
Property Development

15.

Trade and other debtors

Soho Housing Association Limited
Group
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

15. Trade and other debtors

2019
£’000

Association

2018
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Rent arrears

641

299

641

299

Less: provision for bad debts

(50)

(50)

(50)

(50)

927

912

927

912

601

477

601

477

2,119

1,638

2,119

1,638

Offset of deposit held by THFC
Other debtors, prepayments and accrued income

Debtors are all due within one year

16.

Cash and cash equivalents
Group
2019

Money market investments
Cash at bank

Association
2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

109

2,107

109

2,107

3,058

2,370

3,058

2,370

3,167

4,477

3,167

4,477

In the above are balances totalling £53,793 (2018: £43,000) which are held in trust for leaseholders and £657,220 in a
sinking fund. (2018: £657,000)
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17.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Loans and overdrafts (Note 19b)

895

830

895

830

Trade creditors

465

302

465

302

-

-

29

29

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Taxation
Rents and service charges paid in advance
Service charge balances held on behalf of leaseholders
Accruals and deferred income

-

-

-

-

383

277

383

277

54

42

54

42

578

1,144

578

1,144

-

101

-

101

618

618

618

618

83

288

83

288

1,111

671

1,111

671

4,187

4,273

4,216

4,302

SHPS pension agreement plan
Deferred Capital Grant (Note 20)
Recycled capital grant fund (Note 21)
Other creditors

18(a). Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group
2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Loans (Note 18b)

33,273

33,150

33,273

33,150

Deferred Capital Grant (Note 19)

47,489

46,419

47,489

46,419

1,694

2,489

1,694

2,489

646

657

646

657

83,102

82,715

83,102

82,715

Recycled capital grant fund (Note 20)
Leaseholder sinking funds
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Association
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18(b). Debt analysis
Group

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Within one year

895

830

895

830

In one year or more but less than two years

930

877

930

877

2,038

2,924

2,038

2,924

Loans repayable by instalments:

In two years or more and less than five years
In five years or more

9,781

9,825

9,781

9,825

13,644

14,456

13,644

14,456

-

-

-

-

Loans not repayable by instalments:
Within one year
In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more and less than five years
In five years or more

Loan issue premium
Total loans

-

-

-

-

1,500

1,500

1,500

1,500

19,000

18,000

19,000

18,000

20,500

19,500

20,500

19,500

24

24

24

24

34,168

33,980

34,168

33,980

Loans are secured by specific charges on the Association’s individual properties. The instalment loans are repayable
monthly/quarterly at varying rates of interest.
The interest rate profile of Soho Housing at 31 March 2019 was:

Total

Variable
Rate

Fixed
rate

Weighted
Average
rate

£’000

£’000

£’000

%

Weighted
average
term
Years

Instalment loans

13,644

7,187

6,457

3.52

12.86

Non-instalments loans

20,500

4,000

16,500

4.83

22.91

34,144

11,187

22,957

4.18

18.16

Instalment loans

14,455

7,637

6,818

3.53

14.05

Non-instalments loans

19,500

3,000

16,500

4.75

23.77

33,955

10,637

23,318

4.14

19.01

At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

Soho Housing Annual Report and Accounts 2018-19

55

Soho Housing Association Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
19.

Deferred capital grant
Group

At start of the year
Grant received in the year
Transferred to recycled grant
Amortised on recycled grant
Interest
Released to income in the year
At the end of the year

20.

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

47,037

44,581

47,037

44,581

650

3,500

650

3,500

(56)

-

(56)

-

1,074

-

1,074

-

18

-

18

-

(639)

(1,044)

(639)

(1,044)

48,084

47,037

48,084

47,037

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Amount due to be released < 1 year

639

618

639

618

Amount due to be released > 1 year

47,445

46,419

47,445

46,419

48,084

47,037

48,084

47,037

Recycled capital grant fund
GLA

At the start of the year
Grants recycled
Grant allocated to development
Interest accrued

At the end of the year
Amount three years or older where repayment may be
required
Amount in less than one year
Amount due in greater than one year
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2019

2018

£’000

£’000

2,777

2,768

56

-

(1,074)

-

18

9

1,777

2,777

-

-

83

288

1,694

2,489
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21.

Non-equity share capital

2019
£ and
number of
shares

2018
£ and
number of
shares

At the start of the year

48

50

Issued during the year

-

-

Cancelled during the year

-

(2)

48

48

Group and Association
Allotted Issued and Fully Paid

At the end of the year

The par value of each share is £1. The shares do not have a right to any dividend or distribution in a winding-up and
are not redeemable. Each share has full voting rights. All shares are fully paid.
22.

Capital commitments
Group and association
Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but has not been
provided for in the financial statements
Capital expenditure that has been authorised by the Board but has not yet
been contracted for

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

23

1,162

3,040

3,000

3,063

4,162

The PRP expects these commitments to be financed with:
Social Housing Grant

-

650

Committed loan facilities

3,063

3,512

Existing cash resources

-

-

343

1,162

Capital commitments will be incurred over the next:
In less than one year
In one year or more but less than two years
In two years or more and less than five years
In five years or more

50

300

2,670

2,700

-

-

3,063

4,162
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23.

Operating leases
Soho Housing holds properties and office equipment under non-cancellable operating leases. At the end of the year
Soho Housing had commitments of future minimum lease payments as follows:
Group

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

123

233

123

233

123

466

123

466

246

699

246

699

Others:
Less than one year

10

10

10

10

One to five years

21

21

21

21

31

31

31

31

Land and buildings:
Less than one year
One to five years

The lease agreements do not include any contingent rents or restrictions. Leases for land and buildings include reviews
every 5 years throughout the lease.
Soho Housing has a number of commercial properties leased to lessors. The commitments of future minimum lease
payments from those lessors to Soho Housing is as follows:
Group

Association

2019

2018

2019

2018

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Less than one year

1,977

1,985

1,977

1,985

One to five years

4,831

5,173

4,831

5,173

More than 5 years

3,688

3,910

3,688

3,910

10,496

11,068

10,496

11,068

Land and buildings:

Soho Housing, as a lessor, rents housing properties to a large number of residential tenants. Their tenancy agreements
allow them to cease their tenancy by giving 4 weeks’ notice.
Other than the two (2018 – two) shared ownership tenants, no tenants have the right to purchase their leased
properties.
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24.

Contingent Liabilities
Group and Association
The total accumulated government grant and financial assistance
received or receivable at 31 March:
Held as deferred capital grant
Recognised as income in the statement of Comprehensive Income

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

48,084

47,037

13,059

14,266

61,143

61,303

There is contingent liability of £13,059k government grant that has been amortised and taken to the reserves at 31
March 2019. If there is a disposal of any property to which this grant is attached the amount will become repayable.
25.

Related parties
The Board have 2 tenant members who hold tenancy agreements on normal terms and cannot use their position to
their advantage. Rent charged to the Tenant Board members was £7,209 (2018: £7,209). There are no arrears on the
tenancy at the reporting period end (2018: £Nil). There is an intercompany debt of £29k between Soho Limited and
Soho HA at 31 March 2019
West Smithfield Developments LLP (note 14) is a joint venture. As at 31 March 2019, the LLP owed £nil (2018 - £nil)
to the Group.
The LLP distributed £50k to Soho Limited (2018 - £1.532m), a charitable donation was then made to Soho Housing
Association.
Related party balances are not secured.

26.

Financial instruments
2019

2018

£’000

£’000

1,142

522

39,314

37,811

The Group’s and Association’s financial instruments may be analysed as
follows:
Financial assets
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
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Registered Office
4th Floor
120 Charing Cross Rd
London WC2H 0JR
www.sohoha.org.uk
@SohoHousing
Auditor
BDO LLP
Statutory Auditor
2 City Place
Beehive Ring Road
Gatwick RH6 0PA
Bankers
Lloyds Bank
39 Threadneedle St
London EC2R 8AU

Governance
We have adopted the National Housing
Federation (NHF) 2015 code of excellence for
governance and its code of conduct. We are
fully compliant with the code.
Registered social landlord number:
LH1321
Co-operative & Community Benefit
Societies Act Number
20784R

